
 

 Council Meeting Agenda – February 22, 2022              1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, February 22, 2022 @ 8:00PM 
 

The Regular Council Meeting will be held in the Community Room at the Depot located 
at 200 S. Main St. Evart, MI 49631  

  
Before each regular council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session from 

7:30PM to 8:00PM. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

3. Roll Call  
 

4. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

5. Approval of Agenda 
 

6. Consent Agenda 
The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or public may ask 
that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for discussion. All 
such requests will be granted.  
 
A. Regular Council Minutes – February 7, 2022 
B. Vendor’s List $363,472.96 
C. Budget Amendments  

 
7. Unfinished Business  

D. Sale and Split of Lots 6, 7 & 8 of the Industrial Park -Discussion only  
 

8. New Business 
E. Resolution 2022-03 Appointing City Clerk  
F. City Assessor Contract Renewal  
G. Parking Fees at Riverside West  
H. Review Zoning Permit Fee Schedule 

 
 
 
 

City Council 
Mayor: Chris Emerick 
Mayor Pro-Tem: Sandy Szeliga 
Council: Dan Elliott 
Sean Duffy 
Matt Hildebrand 
City Clerk: Kathy Fiebig 
City Manager: Pepper Lockhart 

City of Evart 
200 S. Main St.  
Evart, MI 49631 
(231) 734-2181 
 
 
 
 
 

www.evart.org 

http://www.evart.org/


 

 Council Meeting Agenda – February 22, 2022              2 
 

9. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
 I.  Accounts Payable Report (2/8/2022 – 2/22/2022)  
J.  Payroll Reports (2/8/2022 – 2/22/2022) 
K.   Summary of all Funds (October 2021 – January 2022) 
 

10.  City Attorney Report/Comment 
 

11.  City Clerk Report/Comment 
 
12.  City Manager Report/Comment   

 L. Monthly Report  
 

13.  Finance Director Report/Comment 
 M. Finance Director’s Monthly Report – January 2021 
 

14.  Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
 N. DPW Monthly Report – January 2021 
 

15.  Police Department Report/Comment 
 O. Police Department Monthly Report – January 2021  
 

16.  Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
 P. DDA Meeting Packet – February 8, 2022 
 

17.  Evart Area Fire Department 
 Q. Fire Department Minutes – January 11, 2022 
 R. Fire Department Note Reports – paper copy only (FYI) 

 
18.  Housing Commission  

 S. Housing Commission Minutes – January 18, 2022 
 

19.  Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

20.  Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
  



1 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 2.7.2022 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

February 7, 2022 @ 8:00PM 
Community Room at the Depot, 200 S. Main Street 

 
 

Mayor Emerick called the meeting to order at 8:00pm, then led the assembly in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, Dan Elliott, Chris Emerick, Matt Hildebrand, Sandra Szeliga  
 
Present (staff): City Manager Pepper Lockhart, Finance Director/Treasurer Jennie Duncan, 
Director of Public Works Dustin Moma, City Attorney James White, City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests: John and Angela Hunter, Stephen Eades, Dr. Steve Kalesperis, Ashlee Flachs, June-
Marie Essner, Alan Bengry, Molly Cataldo, Todd Bruggema, Randy Berger, Chris Elliott, Rachel 
Gokey, two unidentified 
 
Citizens’ Comments: none 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda as presented.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand.        
Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
A.  Regular Council Minutes – January 3, 2022 
B.  Vendor’s List $379,041.55 
C.  Budget Amendments 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Support by Mr. 
Hildebrand. Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Unfinished Business 
D.  Variance Waiver Exemption 
Dr. Steve Kaleperis requested an ordinance amendment or a waiver to reduce the 1,000’ 
setback for marijuana businesses from schools, churches and other entities. He believes that 
US10 is adequate as a buffer zone and is concerned that his offer to purchase property in the 
Industrial Park for a marijuana campus cannot proceed unless this amendment/waiver is 
granted.  Council members each stated that they have no interest in changing the setback. 
Motion by Mr. Elliott to deny the request for a variance waiver exemption to change the 1,000’ 
setback requirement for marijuana. Support by Ms. Szeliga.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
E.  Sale of Evart Industrial Park Lots 
Ms. Lockhart presented two offers regarding the purchases of property in the Industrial Park, 
both involving Lot 2 and the MacClellan Building. The first offer is from Dr. Steve Kalesperis and 
Robb LaPeen and has been discussed previously. The second offer is a new offer from Steven 
Eades on behalf of MacClellan Integrated Services.  Mr. White noted that the title search on this 
property showed an outstanding mortgage in years past and he is researching the matter. He is 
confident that the mortgage has been paid in full.  Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to accept the offer 
from Mr. Eades in the amount of $400,000.00 cash, pending the favorable results of the title 
search and a Phase 1 Environmental Assessment to be conducted by the purchaser. Support 
by Ms. Szeliga. Motion passed with all in favor. 



2 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 2.7.2022 
 

F. Sale and Split of Lots 6, 7 & 8 of the Industrial Park – tabled until reviewed by the Planning 
Commission 
 
New Business 
G.  Green Gold Diner – Special Events 
Rachel Gokey and Chris Elliott presented a proposal to hold multiple special events at the 
Green Gold Diner at 201 W. Seventh Street. They are proposing five events, with three of them 
being fundraisers for local non-profits. They requested permission from council to apply for a 
temporary liquor license for these three events. Discussion followed on possible conflicts with 
the Farmers Market, parking issues, and noise restrictions. Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve 
the Certified Resolution for the Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 
authorizing the application for a special liquor license for the Green Gold Diner. Support by Ms. 
Szeliga.  Motion passed with a roll call vote: Elliott, Emerick, Hildebrand, Szeliga, Duffy in favor.  
None opposed.  
H.  Downtown Development Authority (DDA) Director Contract 
Alan Bengry, chair of the DDA Board of Directors, introduced Todd Bruggema and requested 
that council approve the contract that has been offered to Mr. Bruggema to serve as DDA 
Director. The DDA Board believes that Mr. Bruggema is an excellent candidate for the position. 
Mr. Hildebrand noted that the contract reflects a significant salary increase and asked if the 
DDA budget will support that. Mr. Bengry stated that since the DDA has been without a director 
for ten months, those funds are still available.  The current budget will support the difference in 
salary for two years. Future budgets will reflect the increase. Motion by Mr. Elliott to approve the 
DDA/Bruggema contract as written. Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with all in favor. 
I.   Savoy Energy Lease Renewal 
Ms. Lockhart presented a lease renewal proposal from Savoy Energy in the amount of $6,276 
for a term of three years.  If production occurs, the city will receive 1/8th royalties. Mr. White has 
reviewed and approved the lease. Motion by Mr. Duffy to accept the lease renewal pursuant to 
the terms presented. Support by Mayor Emerick. Motion passed with all in favor. 
J.  Appointment to Election Commission 
Ms. Fiebig requested that Sandra Szeliga and Marsha Warren be appointed to the Election 
Commission for two-year terms expiring in January of 2024.  Motion by Mr. Elliott to approve 
both appointments. Support by Mr. Hildebrand. Motion passed with all in favor.  
 
Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
K.  Accounts Payable Report (1/4/2022 – 2/7/2022) 
L.  Payroll Reports (1/4/2022 – 2/7/2022)                           
 
City Attorney Report/Comments 
M. Monthly Report 12/21/2021 – 1/14/2022 
Mr. White noted that due to the cancellation of the meeting scheduled for January 18 his 
attached report is outdated but still relevant. The property swap with Lume is close to being 
complete.  
City Clerk Report/Comment 
N. FYI- Michigan Works/Rilee Clark 
Ms. Fiebig was invited to speak to the Board of Directors of Michigan Works last week as the 
city’s partnership with Evart Public Schools, MI Works and student Rilee Clark has been an 
outstanding success. She is working on the ballot proposal for the August primary for the 
charter amendment regarding the clerk’s position and is again working with the Muskegon River 
Watershed Assembly on the tree grant.  Fifty-eight (58) trees remain to be planted. 
City Manager Report/Comment 



3 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes Regular Meeting 2.7.2022 
 

Ms. Lockhart mentioned that Chief of Police John Beam intends to place a ballot initiative 
regarding renewal of the police millage on the August ballot as well. 
Finance Director Report/Comment 
O. Monthly Report – December 2021 
Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
P. Monthly Report – December 2021 
Police Department Report/Comment 
Q.  Monthly Report – December 2021 
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
R. Meeting Packet – January 11, 2022 
Planning Commission: none 
Evart Area Fire Department 
S. Minutes – December 14, 2021 & January 11, 2022 
Evart Housing Commission 
T. Minutes – November 16, 2021 
Compensation (Pay) Commission 
U. Minutes - December 30, 2021 
Historic District Commission 
V. Minutes – January 12, 2022 
 
Citizens’ Comments: 
Ashlee Flachs thanked council for denying the request to reduce the 1,000’ setback for 
marijuana businesses. 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand. Motion passed with all in 
favor. The meeting was adjourned at 8:54pm.             . 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 
 

 

 









































































































City Hall  5814 100th Ave  Evart  49631 
www.evart.org 

 
 
 
 
To: Honorable Mayor Emerick & Council Members 
From: Jennie Duncan, Finance Director/Treasurer 
Date: February 17, 2022 
Re: Finance Director's Report for January 2022 
 
Vendor's List- You will have the vendor's summary report in your packet that list's all vendors paid 
up until February 22, 2022. 
 
Payroll Report-You will have a payroll report including the dates of 2/7/2022 – 2/22/2022. 
 
Completed all payroll reconciliations for January 2022. 
 
Completed DDA Financials for January 2022 including payroll, vendor's list, revenue/expense 
report, and balance sheets. 
 
Completed Fire Department Financials for January 2022, including payroll, vendor’s list and 
revenue/expense report 
 
Completed weekly payroll for the Evart Housing Commission  
 
Completed W2 and 1099 for the city, Housing Commission, DDA and Fire Department  
 
Updated all payroll – health insurance and leave hours  
 
Summer and Winter Tax Disbursements  
 
Continuing to train office staff 
 
 
 
 
  
 

   

Jennie Duncan 
Finance Director/Treasurer 

o: (231) 734-2181 
jennie.duncan@evart.org 









 
 

Evart Police Department 
Monthly Report 

 

Community Events 
 

The Evart Police Department did not participate in any community events during the month of January. 
 

 
 

Trainings 
 

Officer JJ Higgins attended Taser Instructor training to replace Chief Beam as the instructor for the 
department. 

 
 
 

Technology 
 

Chief Beam has been communication with IT Right trouble shoot connecting the cameras to our 
network.  Additional equipment needed to be purchased. 

 
 

 
Department Roster 

 

Title Name Badge Number 

Chief of Police John Beam Jr. 39-01 

K9-Officer Patrick McClure 39-K9 

Full Time Police Officer Chad Wilson 39-04 

Part Time Police Officer JJ Higgins 39-06 

Part Time Police Officer Johnnie Daniels 39-03 
 

   
 TOTAL ACTIVITIES  

OFFICER TOTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beam, John Jr. 61 

Higgins, JJ 126 

McClure, Patrick 115 

Wilson, Chad 172 

TOTAL: 474 
 

 

  
 
 
 

 

January 2022 



 ARRESTS  

OFFICER NUMBER OF ARRESTS 

Higgins, JJ 2 

Beam, John Jr. 0 

McClure, Patrick 3 

Wilson, Chad 0 

TOTAL: 5 
 

 

   

 ASSISTS  

AGENCY NUMBER OF ASSISTS 

Assist Citizen 9 

Assist DHS 1 

Assist Evart Public School 1 

Assist MSP 1 

Assist OCSD 1 

Assist Police Agency 2 

Motorist Assist 1 

TOTAL: 16 
 

 

 
 ACCIDENTS  

TYPE NUMBER OF ACCIDENTS 

Accident - Hit and Run 1 

Accident - PD 1 

Accident - Private Property 1 

TOTAL: 3 
 

   

     
 TRAFFIC 

VIOLATIONS 
 

OFFICER Traffic 
Complaint/Hazard 

Traffic Stop 
Citation 

Traffic Stop Verbal 
Warning 

Beam, John Jr. 0 0 5 

Higgins, JJ 3 0 0 

McClure, Patrick 0 1 4 

Wilson, Chad 2 0 1 

TOTAL: 5 1 10 
 

  

     
 ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS   

OFFICER ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS ORDINANACE COUNT 

Beam, John Jr. Ordinance Violation - Warning 1 

Wilson, Chad Ordinance Violation - Warning 2 

TOTAL: 3 
 

 

 



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tuesday February 8th, 2022 8:00 AM 

200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

1. Call Meeting to Order

2. Attendance

3. Introduction of Guests

4. Citizen Comments

5. Approval of Agenda

6. Approval of January 11, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes

7. Approval of Vendor List for December 2021 and January 2022

8. President’s Comments

9. Director’s Comments

10. City Manager’s Comments

11. Committee Updates

Economic Vitality

a. Farmers Market Report

b. Pop-Up

c. Business Recruitment Primer-draft

Design 

a. SBEI

b. Benches/Bike Racks

c. Way Finding Signage (paused)

Promotion 

a. Shop Local

b. Summer Concert Series

Organization 

a. Board Recruiting

b. Volunteers

13. Old Business

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan

i. Williams and Works information

14. New Business

a. Director Contract

b. Farmers Market Manager Contract

c. New business on Main Street

15. Citizen’s Comments

16. Adjournment



 

 

EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Tuesday January 11th, 2021 8:00 AM 
200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Meeting called to order by Bengry at 8:02am 

 

2. Attendance: Alan Bengry, Molly Cataldo, Lynn Salinas, June-Marie Essner, Erica Henry, Jason 

O’Dell, Pepper Lockhart 

Absent: Shannon Schmidt, Sandy Szeliga 

 

3. Guests: Angela Hunter 

4. Citizen Comments: None 

5. Approval of agenda as presented. 

6. Election of Officers for 2022.  Lockhart took over the running of the meeting.  Nominations were 

made for President, Vice-President, Treasurer and Secretary. 

Moved by Salinas, supported by O’Dell to elect Alan Bengry as President. 

Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

Moved by Salinas, supported by O’Dell to elect Molly Cataldo as Vice-President. 

Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

Moved by Cataldo, supported by Henry to elect June-Marie Essner as Secretary. 

Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

Moved by Cataldo, supported by Lockhart to elect Lynn Salinas as Treasurer. 

Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

Bengry took over the running of the meeting. 

 

7. Moved by Salinas, supported by Cataldo for approval of December 14, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Minutes. 

Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

 

8. Approval of Vendor List for December 2021 tabled until everyone can review. 

 

9. President’s Comments: No report 

 

10. Director’s Comments: No report 

11. City Manager’s Comments:  

 

12. Committee Updates  

Economic Vitality 

a. Farmers Market:  Waiting for two deposits from the State of Michigan for food assistance. 

b. Pop-Up: Available for Lease 

c. Business Recruitment Primer: R2R draft discussed and clarification on information needed from 

City Assessor for this document.  Lockhart will be speaking with Assessor Kirwin regarding what 

is needed. 



 

 

 

Design 

a. SBEI 

b. Benches/Bike Racks: Ferris students are working on some bike racks. 

c. Way Finding Signage:   

 

Promotion 

a. Shop Local: 

 

Organization 

a. Board Recruiting: No action at this time 

b. Volunteers 

 

13. Old Business 

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 

b. Director Search:  Discussion regarding competitiveness of the position regarding pay and 

benefits. Cataldo will reach out to the State MMS to see what other communities are offering. 

c. Trails Magazine:  It was decided we would have an ad in the publication and a web leader ad.  

Essner will contact the publication to see if there is an incentive for having this coverage. 

d.  

  

14. New Business  

a. MMS/MEDC Reporting:  Cataldo explained how the monthly data reporting is handled.  This 

information is needed by the 10th of each month. 

b. Lori Tesch email.  Discussion for 2022 summer artists.  Three larger artists and filling in with 

more local talent.  They must meet the mini-grant requirements for being an artist.  Essner will 

contact Bob Marshall Band, Cataldo will speak with Schmidt regarding Jake Slatter.   

 

15. Citizen’s Comments:  O’Dell commented on the public survey results for downtown to be a place to 

linger and our need to work with the Zoning Committee and other city leaders to keep this in mind and 

happening. 

Reminder of Joint City Stakeholders meeting on Jan 19, 2022 at 5:30pm 

 

16. Motion made by Salinas, supported by Essner to adjourn at 9:23am. 

Ayes:  7  Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  June-Marie Essner, secretary 



Total -$                             

Farmer's Market Vendors List December 2021

Total 7,613.99$                   

Consumers Energy Electric Bill 33.07$                         ACH 12/16/2021

Verizon Phone 132.70$                       ACH 12/24/2021

SquareSpace, Inc Evart Main St Website Newal 216.00$                       CC 12/16/2021

Gallup 19.99$                         ACH 12/16/2021

Maestrocm 50.00$                         ACH 12/9/2021

City of Evart November 2021 Utility Billing 20.73$                         ACH 12/15/2021

Michigan State University 2,500.00$                    5665 12/6/2021

Savvy Media Social Media 150.00$                       5666 12/6/2021

Baird, Cotter & Bishop 2020-2021 Aduit 2,550.00$                    5663 12/6/2021

Hometown Decoration 1/2 Christmas Decorations 1,921.50$                    5664 12/6/2021

Downtown Development Authority Vendors List/Payroll - December 2021
VENDOR PURPOSE AMOUNT PAID DATE

SquareSpace, Inc Domain Renewal for Evart Main St. 20.00$                         CC 12/1/2021



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/3Page:01/10/2022 07:16 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2021

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2021

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2021

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2021-22

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues
Dept 000 - 728

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST-REVENUE248-000-665.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES248-395-403.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PPT REIMBURSEMENT248-395-405.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DUFB GRANT248-395-481.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STATE GRANTS- OTHER248-395-569.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LOCAL COMMUNITY STABILIZATION SHARE248-395-573.000

100.00 (32.14)0.62 32.14 0.00 INTEREST-REVENUE248-395-665.000
100.00 (52,592.84)12,550.00 52,592.84 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE248-395-685.000
100.00 (500.00)0.00 500.00 0.00 RENT REVENUE248-395-685.801

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PROMO PROJECTS REVENUE248-395-685.802
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ORGANIZATION PROJECTS REV GALA248-395-685.803
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MMS PLEDGES-CITY CONTRIBUTION248-395-685.804
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  IND/CORPORATE DONATIONS248-395-685.805
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GARDEN MAIN. (IN-KIND CONTRIBUTION)248-395-685.806
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FARMERS MARKET REVENUE248-395-685.807

100.00 (413.75)0.00 413.75 0.00 EVENT DONATIONS REV248-395-685.808
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SUM CON CORPORATE DONATIONS REV248-395-685.809
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SUM CON (CONCERT DAY DONATIONS) REV248-395-685.810
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SUMMER CONCERT SERIES GRANT REVENUE248-395-685.811
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SUM CON MEDIA ADVERSTISING TRADE IN KIND248-395-685.812

100.00 (53,538.73)12,550.62 53,538.73 0.00 Total Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

100.00 (53,538.73)12,550.62 53,538.73 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 000 - 728

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MERCHANT CARD FEES248-000-881.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FARMERS MARKET MISC EXPENSE248-000-955.807
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT-EXPENSE248-000-956.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000 - 728

Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALARIES248-395-702.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SAL/WAGES, PT248-395-707.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CASH-IN-LIEU248-395-710.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 HEALTH INSURANCE248-395-716.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 RETIREMENT248-395-718.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS248-395-719.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PAYROLL TAX EXPENSE 248-395-720.000

100.00 (2.00)0.00 2.00 0.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMP.248-395-723.000
100.00 115.00 0.00 (115.00)0.00 WORKMENS COMPENSATION248-395-724.000
100.00 (64.90)0.00 64.90 0.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES248-395-727.000
100.00 (359.97)69.99 359.97 0.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES248-395-740.000
100.00 (58.00)0.00 58.00 0.00 POSTAGE & SHIPPING248-395-741.000
100.00 (3,533.00)2,500.00 3,533.00 0.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES248-395-801.000



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/3Page:01/10/2022 07:16 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2021

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2021

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2021

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2021-22

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Expenditures

100.00 (2,550.00)2,550.00 2,550.00 0.00 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES248-395-803.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DDA LEGAL SERVICES248-395-804.000

100.00 (375.00)0.00 375.00 0.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES248-395-807.000
100.00 (1,132.27)368.70 1,132.27 0.00 COMMUNICATIONS248-395-850.000
100.00 (25.00)0.00 25.00 0.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES248-395-860.000
100.00 (700.00)150.00 700.00 0.00 COMMUNITY PROMOTIONS248-395-880.000
100.00 (231.03)0.00 231.03 0.00 FACADE GRANTS248-395-880.101
100.00 (1,921.50)1,921.50 1,921.50 0.00 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS248-395-880.102

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GARDENS248-395-880.103
100.00 (275.00)0.00 275.00 0.00 UNCOMMITTED DESIGN PROJECTS (FUTURE)248-395-880.104

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SHOP LOCAL (VITALITY PROJECT)248-395-880.105
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MARKETING & COMMUN(ORGANIZATION PROJECT)248-395-880.106
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GALA FUNDRAISER(FUTURE UNCOMMITTED PROJ)248-395-880.107
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MAIN STREET MIXERS (EXISTING PROJECT)248-395-880.108

100.00 (1,850.00)0.00 1,850.00 0.00 SUM CONCERT SERIES (EXISTING PROJECTS)248-395-880.109
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FARMERS MARKET (EXISTING PROJECT)248-395-880.110

100.00 (300.00)0.00 300.00 0.00 EVENT SPONSORSHIP (EXISTING PROJECT)248-395-880.111
100.00 (2.00)0.00 2.00 0.00 EVART BUCKS (EXISTING PROJECT)248-395-880.112
100.00 (47.00)0.00 47.00 0.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING248-395-900.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE248-395-912.000
100.00 (637.23)53.80 637.23 0.00 UTILITIES248-395-921.000
100.00 (55.73)0.00 55.73 0.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE248-395-930.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT248-395-932.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE248-395-955.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING248-395-957.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PROJECT COSTS 248-395-967.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED248-395-970.100

100.00 (14,004.63)7,613.99 14,004.63 0.00 Total Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MEDICARE248-850-714.000
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SOCIAL SECURITY 248-850-715.000

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 850 - FRINGE BENEFITS

100.00 (14,004.63)7,613.99 14,004.63 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 (39,534.10)4,936.63 39,534.10 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

100.00 (14,004.63)7,613.99 14,004.63 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (53,538.73)12,550.62 53,538.73 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/3Page:01/10/2022 07:16 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2021

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2021

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
12/31/2021

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2021-22

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 551 - FARMERS MARKET
Revenues
Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 FUNDRAISING551-395-685.603
(51.54)1,970.00 0.00 (670.00)1,300.00 DOUBLE UP FOOD BUCKS551-395-685.800

0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SNAP551-395-685.801
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 WIC551-395-685.802

(1.20)1,012.00 0.00 (12.00)1,000.00 SENIOR FRESH551-395-685.803
(4.80)524.00 0.00 (24.00)500.00 SPECTRUM HEALTH551-395-685.805
0.00 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 VENDOR FEES551-395-685.806
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 FARMERS MARKET MISC551-395-685.807

(8.83)8,706.00 0.00 (706.00)8,000.00 Total Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

(8.83)8,706.00 0.00 (706.00)8,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

0.00 50.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES551-395-727.000
130.31 (394.00)0.00 1,694.00 1,300.00 DOUBLE UP FOOD BUCKS551-395-728.000

0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 SNAP551-395-729.000
59.40 203.00 0.00 297.00 500.00 WIC551-395-730.000
118.00 (180.00)0.00 1,180.00 1,000.00 SENIOR FRESH551-395-731.000
253.80 (769.00)0.00 1,269.00 500.00 SPECTRUM HEALTH551-395-732.000
100.00 (22.07)0.00 22.07 0.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES551-395-740.000
41.38 1,700.00 0.00 1,200.00 2,900.00 FARM MANAGER CONTRACT551-395-801.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES551-395-807.000

35.45 129.10 0.00 70.90 200.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES551-395-860.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 SPECIAL EVENTS/PROGRAMS551-395-895.000
8.33 137.50 0.00 12.50 150.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING551-395-900.000
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE551-395-955.000
0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING551-395-957.000

73.19 2,104.53 0.00 5,745.47 7,850.00 Total Dept 395 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

73.19 2,104.53 0.00 5,745.47 7,850.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

4,300.98 6,601.47 0.00 (6,451.47)150.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

73.19 2,104.53 0.00 5,745.47 7,850.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
8.83 8,706.00 0.00 (706.00)8,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 551 - FARMERS MARKET:

22,055.09 (32,932.63)4,936.63 33,082.63 150.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

251.59 (11,900.10)7,613.99 19,750.10 7,850.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
660.41 (44,832.73)12,550.62 52,832.73 8,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF EVART 1/2Page:01/10/2022 07:17 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

Period Ending 12/31/2021

                                     Fund 248 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

103,308.89 CASH248-000-001.000
2,558.58 FARMERS MARKET248-000-003.807

0.00 PREPAID EXPENSES248-000-123.000
0.00 CASH248-395-001.000

116,221.04 SAVINGS248-395-002.000
20.45 PETTY CASH248-395-004.000
0.00 PREPAID EXPENSES248-395-123.000

222,108.96 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

10.00 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE248-000-202.000
0.00 DUE TO FEDERAL  TAXES248-000-255.000
0.00 DUE TO STATE TAXES248-000-256.000
0.00 ACCRUED WAGES248-000-257.000
0.00 VANGAURD WITHHOLDING248-000-257.248
0.00 ACCRUED EMPLOYER TAX PAYABLE 248-000-258.000

(127.65)FARMERS MARKET VENDORS248-000-277.000
757.00 DUFB - DOUBLE UP FOOD BUCKS248-000-277.100

0.00 DEFERRED REVENUES248-000-339.000
0.00 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE248-395-202.000
0.00 ACCRUED WAGES248-395-257.000
0.00 ACCRUED EMPLOYER TAX PAYABLE 248-395-258.000
0.00 ACCRUED EXPENSES248-395-258.001

19,676.53 DEFERRED REVENUES248-395-339.000

20,315.88 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

0.00 FUND BALANCE248-000-390.000
0.00 UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS248-000-395.000

88,591.69 FUND BALANCE248-395-390.000
73,667.29 UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS248-395-395.000

162,258.98 Total Fund Balance

162,258.98 Beginning Fund Balance

39,534.10 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
201,793.08 Ending Fund Balance
222,108.96 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance



BALANCE SHEET FOR CITY OF EVART 2/2Page:01/10/2022 07:17 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: City Of Evart

Period Ending 12/31/2021

                                     Fund 551 FARMERS MARKET

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

6,661.67 CASH551-000-001.000
(4,711.54)PREPAID EXPENSES551-000-123.000

0.00 PETTY CASH551-395-004.000

1,950.13 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

(10.00)ACCOUNTS PAYABLE551-000-202.000
8,411.60 FARMERS MARKET VENDORS551-395-277.000

8,401.60 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

0.00 FUND BALANCE551-000-390.000

0.00 Total Fund Balance

0.00 Beginning Fund Balance

(6,451.47)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
(6,451.47)Ending Fund Balance
1,950.13 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance





EVART DDA
PO BOX 668
EVART MI 49631-0668
                                                                 

Have a Question or Concern?

Stop by your nearest
Huntington office or
contact us at:

1-800-480-2001

www.huntington.com/
businessresources

Huntington Public Funds Hybrid Checking Account: -------1020

Statement Activity From:
12/01/21 to 12/31/21

Days in Statement Period 31

Average Ledger Balance* 97,658.81
Average Collected Balance* 97,600.75

* The above balances correspond to the
service charge cycle for this account.

Beginning Balance $98,428.59
Credits (+) 13,025.83

Regular Deposits 12,550.00
Interest Earned 0.62
Other Credits 475.21

Debits (-) 7,613.99
Regular Checks Paid 7,121.50
Electronic Withdrawals 186.50
Other Debits 305.99

Ending Balance $103,840.43

Deposits (+) Account:-------1020

Date Amount Serial # Type Date Amount Serial # Type

12/06 2,050.00 173589083 Brch/ATM 12/30 10,500.00 173589088 Brch/ATM

Other Credits (+) Account:-------1020

Date Amount Description

12/15 0.62 INTEREST PAYMENT

12/17 475.21 Dispute Credit Issued

Checks (-) Account:-------1020

Date Amount Check # Date Amount Check #

12/13 2,550.00 5663

12/15 1,921.50 5664

12/23 2,500.00 5665

12/20 150.00 5666

(*) Indicates the prior sequentially numbered check(s) may have 1) been voided by you 2) not yet been presented 3) appeared on a previous
statement or 4) been included in a list of checks.

Other Debits (-) Account:-------1020

Date Amount Description

12/01 20.00 PURCHASE SQUARESPACE INC. SQUARESPACE INC. NEW YORK NY XXXXXXXXXXXX5551

THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK
PO BOX 1558 EA1W37
COLUMBUS OH 43216-1558

Investments are offered through the Huntington Investment Company, Registered Investment Advisor, member FINRA/SIPC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huntington Bancshares Inc.

The Huntington National Bank is Member FDIC. , Huntington and 24-Hour Grace are federally registered service marks of Huntington
Bancshares Incorporated. The 24-Hour Grace system and method is patented: US Pat. No. 8,364,581, 8,781,955, 10,475,118, and others
pending. 82021 Huntington Bancshares Incorporated.

Statement Period from 12/01/21 to 12/31/21 Page 1 of 2



Other Debits (-) Account:-------1020

Date Amount Description

12/09 50.00 PURCHASE MAESTROCM MAESTROCM 2173916094 IL XXXXXXXXXXXX5551

12/15 20.73 CITY OF EVART UTIL BILL 211214 06890-001

12/16 216.00 PURCHASE SQUARESPACE INC. SQUARESPACE INC. NEW YORK NY XXXXXXXXXXXX5551

12/16 19.99 PURCHASE DRI*GALLUP DRI*GALLUP 18885256117 MN XXXXXXXXXXXX3457

12/16 33.07 CONSUMERS ENERGY ENERGYBILL 211215 103036764720

12/24 132.70 VERIZON WIRELESS PAYMENTS 211224 044221717200001

Balance Activity Account:-------1020

Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance

11/30 98,428.59
12/01 98,408.59
12/06 100,458.59
12/09 100,408.59

12/13 97,858.59
12/15 95,916.98
12/16 95,647.92
12/17 96,123.13

12/20 95,973.13
12/23 93,473.13
12/24 93,340.43
12/30 103,840.43

In the Event of Errors or Questions Concerning Electronic Fund Transfers (electronic deposits, withdrawals, transfers,
payments, or purchases), please call either 1-614-480-2001 or call toll free 1-800-480-2001, or write to The Huntington National Bank Research
- EA4W61, P.O. Box 1558, Columbus, Ohio 43216 as soon as you can, if you think your statement or receipt is wrong or if you need more
information about an electronic fund transfer on the statement or receipt. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the
FIRST statement on which the error or problem appeared.

1. Tell us your name, your business's name (if appropriate) and the Huntington account number (if any).
2. Describe the error or the transaction you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you believe there is an error or why

you need more information.
3. Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error. We will investigate your complaint or question and will correct any error promptly.

Verification of Electronic Deposits If you authorized someone to make regular electronic fund transfers of money to your account at
least once every sixty days, you can find out whether or not the deposit has been received by us, call either 1-614-480-2001 or call toll free
1-800-480-2001.

Balancing Your Statement - For your convenience, a balancing page is available on our web site https://www.huntington.com/pdf/balancing.pdf
and also available on Huntington Business Online.

Statement Period from 12/01/21 to 12/31/21 Page 2 of 2





EVART DDA
FARMERS MARKET
PO BOX 668
EVART MI 49631-0668
                                                                 

Have a Question or Concern?

Stop by your nearest
Huntington office or
contact us at:

1-800-480-2001

www.huntington.com/
businessresources

Huntington Public Funds Economy Checking Account: -------9088

Statement Activity From:
12/01/21 to 12/31/21

Days in Statement Period 31

Average Ledger Balance* 4,544.07
Average Collected Balance* 4,544.07

* The above balances correspond to the
service charge cycle for this account.

Beginning Balance $4,545.46
Credits (+) 32.25

Other Credits 32.25
Debits (-) 43.00

Regular Checks Paid 43.00
Total Service Charges (-) 0.00
Ending Balance $4,534.71

Other Credits (+) Account:-------9088

Date Amount Description

12/08 32.25 PRIOR MONTH'S SERVICE CHARGE REFUND

Checks (-) Account:-------9088

Date Amount Check # Date Amount Check #

12/13 43.00 2220

(*) Indicates the prior sequentially numbered check(s) may have 1) been voided by you 2) not yet been presented 3) appeared on a previous
statement or 4) been included in a list of checks.

Service Charge Summary Account:-------9088

Previous Month Service Charges (-) $0.00
Total Service Charges (-) $0.00

Balance Activity Account:-------9088

Date Balance Date Balance Date Balance

11/30 4,545.46 12/08 4,577.71 12/13 4,534.71

THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK
PO BOX 1558 EA1W37
COLUMBUS OH 43216-1558

Investments are offered through the Huntington Investment Company, Registered Investment Advisor, member FINRA/SIPC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huntington Bancshares Inc.

The Huntington National Bank is Member FDIC. , Huntington and 24-Hour Grace are federally registered service marks of Huntington
Bancshares Incorporated. The 24-Hour Grace system and method is patented: US Pat. No. 8,364,581, 8,781,955, 10,475,118, and others
pending. 82021 Huntington Bancshares Incorporated.

Statement Period from 12/01/21 to 12/31/21 Page 1 of 2



In the Event of Errors or Questions Concerning Electronic Fund Transfers (electronic deposits, withdrawals, transfers,
payments, or purchases), please call either 1-614-480-2001 or call toll free 1-800-480-2001, or write to The Huntington National Bank Research
- EA4W61, P.O. Box 1558, Columbus, Ohio 43216 as soon as you can, if you think your statement or receipt is wrong or if you need more
information about an electronic fund transfer on the statement or receipt. We must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent you the
FIRST statement on which the error or problem appeared.

1. Tell us your name, your business's name (if appropriate) and the Huntington account number (if any).
2. Describe the error or the transaction you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can why you believe there is an error or why

you need more information.
3. Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error. We will investigate your complaint or question and will correct any error promptly.

Verification of Electronic Deposits If you authorized someone to make regular electronic fund transfers of money to your account at
least once every sixty days, you can find out whether or not the deposit has been received by us, call either 1-614-480-2001 or call toll free
1-800-480-2001.

Balancing Your Statement - For your convenience, a balancing page is available on our web site https://www.huntington.com/pdf/balancing.pdf
and also available on Huntington Business Online.

Statement Period from 12/01/21 to 12/31/21 Page 2 of 2









Evart Main Street/Downtown Development Authority 
Executive Director Employment Agreement 

 
This Agreement, made and entered into at Evart, Michigan this 1st day of March, 2022 by and 
between the City of Evart Main Street/DDA (hereinafter called the “DDA”), and Todd Bruggema, 
(hereinafter called the “Director”).   
 

1. Director shall perform the duties of DDA Director as prescribed by the DDA Board of 
Directors (hereinafter called the “Board”) and as approved by the City Council of the City 
of Evart (hereinafter the “City Council”), pursuant to Public Act 57 of 2018, and as may be 
established, modified, and/or amended from time to time by the Board and approved by 
the City Council.  Director acknowledges the authority of the Board and City Council with 
respect to their responsibilities and directions related thereto. 
 

1. Director agrees to devote their talents, skills, efforts, and abilities toward competently and 
proficiently fulfilling all duties and responsibilities of the position assigned.  Director 
agrees to faithfully perform those duties assigned by the Board and to comply with the 
directives of the Board with respect thereto.  The Director agrees not to take on any 
conflicts of interest while employed by the DDA. 
 

2. Director understands and acknowledges that the DDA is a public body corporate, funded 
with public tax dollars, and that as such, the documents that Director is privy to are 
generally going to fall within the category of public records as defined by the Freedom of 
Information Act, Public Act 442 of 1976, as amended, subject to transparency and 
disclosure.  Director also recognizes that the business and operations of the DDA are 
subject to the requirements of the Open Meetings Act, Public Act 267 of 1976, as amended, 
and meetings shall be noticed and held accordingly.  Furthermore, all public records shall 
remain the property of the DDA and the City of Evart and shall be retained in such a way 
that they are accessible to the public and kept safely in accordance with a State of 
Michigan approved record retention schedule as required by law.   
 

3. The Director agrees to devote full time to the performance of the services required in this 
Agreement.  The Director shall receive training from Michigan Main Street in order to 
fulfill the duties of the Main Street program. This will include mandatory training sessions 
hosted by the Main Street program at the state and national level. The Director shall also 
strive to maintain a consistent schedule and to regularly contact business owners in the 
Main Street/DDA district.       
 

4. For all services rendered by the Director, the DDA shall pay to the Director an annual 
salary of $62,000 payable in twenty-six (26) equal installments.  (This amount includes a 
base salary of $50,000 and an additional $12,000 in lieu of health, vision, and dental 
insurance for the director and their dependents.) 

 
5. Annually, a portion or all of one Board Meeting shall be used for the following purposes: 

 
a. evaluating the Director and to discuss the working relationships between the 

Director and the Board, 
b. consideration of renewal/nonrenewal of the Director’s contract, and 



c. consideration of adjustments to compensation levels, all subject to approval by the 
City Council, in accordance with Public Act 57 of 2018, as amended. 

 
6. Director understands and agrees that he is an “at will” employee and may be terminated at 

any time for any reason subject to thirty (30) days written notice.  Director may also 
terminate this Agreement for any reason by providing thirty (30) days written notice. 
 

7. DDA and Director agrees to the following terms under this Agreement: 
 

a. Unless terminated, Agreement shall be in effect from this date until February 29th, 
2024 and thereafter is subject to renewal as approved by the Board and as ratified 
by City Council. A positive drug test nullifies this entire agreement. 

b. Director may, at any time, and with thirty (30) days written notice, terminate this 
Contract. 

c. DDA may, at any time, and with thirty (30) days written notice terminate this 
Agreement.   
 

8. Fringe benefits: 
a. The Board shall pay unemployment insurance and workers compensation 

insurance premiums on behalf of the Director. 
b. Beginning with the effective date of this Agreement, the Director shall have fifteen 

(15) paid days available annually for use as sick days and/or vacation days. 
Additional days without pay will only be granted at the discretion of the Board. 

c. Board shall pay, or reimburse the director for, reasonable expenses related to the 
performance of their duties. Eligible expenses must be documented in detail by 
Director prior to reimbursement and may include travel expenses including 
mileage, meals, parking, and lodging. Alcoholic beverages will not be paid for, nor 
reimbursed, by the Board. Mileage reimbursement will be made at the current IRS 
rate and shall be only for mileage traveled to conduct DDA business when using the 
Director’s personal vehicle. Daily travel to and from work shall not be 
reimbursable. 

d. Upon completion of one year of employment, the DDA will match up to a 3% 
contribution to the retirement plan designated by the Director. 

e. The parties agree that this Agreement will not be interpreted or enforced in such a 
manner which discriminates on the basis of race, color, creed, religion, sex, age, 
national origin, or disability. 

f. The Board shall not be obligated to pay for any health, vision, or dental insurance 
for the director, or their dependents, as long as the director is receiving the 
additional compensation described in paragraph 4 above. 

 
9. This Agreement constitutes the sole and only Agreement of the parties and supersedes 

any prior understandings, oral, or written Agreement between the Parties respecting the 
subject matters contained.  The Parties understand and agree that this Agreement shall be 
construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan, that the 
Agreement may not be modified unless in writing, approved by City Council, and signed by 
both Parties.  The Parties agree that any waiver of any part of this Agreement shall not be a 
waiver of any part or part of the whole, nor shall any waiver of a breach of this Agreement 
in whole or in part constitute a waiver of any other succeeding breach.  In case any one or 



more of the provisions in this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal, or 
unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provisions 
shall not affect any other provision, but this Agreement shall be construed as if the invalid, 
illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained in the Agreement. 
 
 

____________________________________________                        ____________________________________________ 
Alan Bengry, President            Todd Bruggema, Director 
Evart Main Street/DDA Board of Directors                     Evart Main Street/DDA 
 
 
 
____________________________________________                        Dated: ____________________________________________ 
June Essner, Secretary             
Evart Main Street/DDA Board of Directors           

 
 



CONTRACT FOR MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

AGREEMENT, made on the ______day of ________ in the year 2022 
by and between: The City of Evart/Downtown Development Authority 

(DDA), and ______________________, hereinafter referred to as 
Evart Farmers Market (EFM) Manager.

The purpose of this assignment is to engage the EFM Manager in a contractor role to manage and 
operate the Evart Farmers Market. The assignment under this contract will include the specific 
job description and activities (attached). The EFM Manager is a part-time contract position with 
the primary responsibility being the day-to-day operation of the market. This position will 
require 10 to 18+ hours a week for 18+ weeks during the market season, which is comprised of 
on-site presence during all market hours, inclusive of set-up and breakdown, as well as off-site 
work during non-market hours, plus about 8+ hours a month in the off-season. In addition, the 
manager will represent the market to the market’s vendors, consumers, and the community. The 
EFM Manager will coordinate their activities with the DDA’s Board of Directors, who set all 
market policy. 

Term 

The period of performance for this assignment is February 1,  2022 through November 30, 
2022. Any amendment or extension of the period of performance must be formalized in writing 
and signed by the EFM Manager and the duly authorized representative of the DDA. 

Office and Support Services 

The DDA will reimburse mileage for farm and craft vendor visits to verify product authenticity 
and origin at the 2022 federal mileage reimbursement rate of $.585/mile, up to a contract total of 
$500.  Requests for mileage reimbursement shall be submitted to DDA at the EFM Manager’s 
convenience (but not more frequently than every other week) and should include the following 
information: 

Purpose of 
Travel 

Point of 
Origin 

Destination Total Miles 
(round trip) 

Reimbursement 
Rate 

Reimbursement 
Requested 

Farm Visit Evart MI Cadillac MI 56.8 $.585mile $33.23 

DDA will pay registration fees, mileage (to be included in mileage stipend for farm visits), 
lodging and a meal stipend for conferences and conventions, as well as membership dues 
to MIFMA and the Farmers Market Coalition. 

DDA is not responsible for furnishing office space but will provide a cell phone with 
unlimited calls and texts and support services relating to copying and disbursing printed 
materials. 

Compensation 

The compensation for this 10 month assignment is $2,800, to be paid in 7 equal installments of 



$400 on the first Wednesday of each month: May through October. Including reimbursable 
travel, the total cost of this contract is not to exceed $3,300. 

Termination 

This contract may be terminated by mutual agreement of both parties. In addition, this contract 
may be terminated by either party by written notice should either party fail substantially to 
perform in accordance with its terms through no fault of the party initiating the termination. In 
the event of termination not the fault of the EFM Manager, the EFM Manager shall be 
compensated for all services performed to the termination date. In the event of the termination 
through fault of the EFM Manager, the EFM Manager shall not be due any additional 
compensation for services rendered past the previous billing of services. 

Employment Status 

For purposes of performing the services specified in this contract, the parties agree that the EFM 
Manager is an independent contractor. The EFM Manager is not an employee of the DDA or 
City of Evart and is responsible for all withholding and other tax liability resulting from this 
contract. The DDA and City of Evart will not provide any individual retirement benefits, group 
life insurance, group health and dental insurance, vacation and sick leave, workers 
compensation, or any other benefits or services. 

Miscellaneous 

A. Agreement and Amendment.

This contract represents the entire agreement between the DDA and the EFM Manager. No 
changes, modifications, or amendments in the terms and conditions of this contract shall be 
effective unless reduced to writing and signed by the EFM Manager and the duly authorized 
representative of the DDA. This contract shall be governed by applicable state and federal law. 
This contract is entered into as of the day and year written above. 

B. Indemnification.

Any EFM Manager, recipient, or entity paid with DDA funds shall be acting as an independent 
contractor and not as an employee of the DDA. Accordingly, such EFM Manager, recipient or 
entity paid with DDA funds shall indemnify and hold the DDA harmless from liability and any 
claims suits, judgments, and damages arising as a result of the performance of the contract. 

Signed in agreement by: 

The City of Evart/Downtown Development Authority 

Signature: ________________________________     Date  ________________________ 

Evart Farmers Market Manager 

Signature:     Date__________________________ 














	5e0ce131-9b59-4564-98af-318cfe6efab7.pdf
	Community Events
	Trainings
	Department Roster


